
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City 
Recorder at 395-8283 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the 
City of Washington Terrace City limits and faxed to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  
Amy Rodriguez, Washington Terrace City Recorder  
 

 

 

 
 Planning Commission Meeting  

Thursday, March 28, 2019 
City Hall Council Chambers 

5249 S. South Pointe Dr. Washington Terrace City 
801-393-8681       

 
 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. WELCOME  
 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 
 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need 
to be addressed here prior to the approval of the agenda. 
 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR  FEBRUARY 28, 2019 
  

5. SPECIAL ORDER 
Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, 
questions by commission, Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then 
commission final discussion. 
 
  5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT IN SUPPORT OR  
         OPPOSITION TO A PROPOSED SUBDIVISION TO BE LOCATED AT  
         175 WEST 4900 SOUTH   
 

6.  NEW BUSINESS               
 
6.1  MOTION: PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION AND  SITE PLAN APPROVAL   
        FOR AN INFILL SINGLE- FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION TO BE   
        LOCATED AT 175 WEST 4900 SOUTH 
                              

7. BUILDING AND PLANNING UPDATES 
 

8. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING 
 



 

PC Minutes 02-28-19 

 

 

City of Washington Terrace 1 
                                                2 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  4 
Thursday, February 28, 2019 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 
County of Weber, State of Utah          7 

_____________________________________________________________________ 8 
 9 
 10 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  11 
Chairman Scott Larsen 12 
Commissioner Dwight Henderson 13 
Commissioner Dan Johnson  14 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan 15 
Commissioner Wallace Reynolds 16 
Commissioner Charles Allen 17 
Commissioner Darren Williams – excused 18 
Chief Building Inspector Jeff Monroe 19 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  20 
City Planning Attorney Bill Morris 21 
 22 
Others Present 23 
Clive Stander 24 
 25 

1. ROLL CALL                                                                           6:00 p.m. 26 
 27 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 28 
 29 

3. WELCOME  30 
- ADMINISTER THE OATH OF OFFICE TO COMMISSIONERS LARSEN 31 

AND HENDERSON 32 
 33 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 34 
 35 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 36 
Motion by Commissioner Reynolds 37 

Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 38 
To approve the agenda 39 

Approved unanimously (6-0) 40 
 41 

        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR  JANUARY 31, 2019 42 
 Motion by Commissioner Morgan 43 

 seconded by Commissioner Reynolds 44 
 to approve the minutes of January 31, 2019 45 

 Approved unanimously (6-0) 46 
  47 



 

PC Minutes 02-28-19 

 

 

5. SPECIAL ORDER 48 
 49 
  5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT IN SUPPORT OR  50 
         OPPOSITION TO A PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMEMDING CHAPTER 51 
         8.16 RELATING TO THE NUISANCE ORDINANCE 52 
 53 

Motion by Commissioner Morgan 54 
Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 55 

To open the public hearing 56 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 57 

 58 
Chairman Larsen opened the public hearing at 6:05 p.m. 59 
There were no citizen comments. 60 
Chairman Larsen closed the public hearing at 6:06 p.m. 61 
  62 
 63 

6.  NEW BUSINESS               64 
 65 
6.1  MOTION: CONCEPT SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR AN INFILL SINGLE- 66 
       FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION TO BE LOCATED AT 200 EAST  67 
       5000 SOUTH 68 
 69 
Monroe stated that Mr. Stander has submitted a concept plan for an infill property. Morris 70 
stated that this is just a green light to move forward with the process and that the concept 71 
plan does not carry any weight. This is only a concept plan. Monroe stated that the T 72 
zones are dead ends. 73 
Commissioner Morgan asked how deep the retention pond with be. Mr. Stander stated 74 
that it has not been designed by the engineer. 75 
Morris emphasized that our infill ordinance has specific building plans that must be met 76 
on the preliminary plans. He stated that this was explained to Mr. Stander during the 77 
Development Review meeting. Monroe stated that he meets the infill density 78 
requirements.  Stander stated that he has not hired a civil engineer as of yet to draw up 79 
the plans.  He will not be able to attend the next Development Meeting. He stated that he 80 
will try to be ready by the April meeting. Monroe stated that he will need to bring a site 81 
plan to that meeting. Monroe stated that the concept plan may change depending on the 82 
detention pond and other items to be reviewed at that meeting. Stander stated that the 83 
units may be around 1700 square feet. 84 
 85 

Motion by Commissioner Johnson 86 
Seconded by Commissioner Henderson 87 

To approve the concept site plan for an infill 88 
Single family residential subdivision to be located at 200 East 5000 South 89 

Approved unanimously (6-0) 90 
 91 
 92 
 93 
 94 



 

PC Minutes 02-28-19 

 

 

 95 
 96 

            6.2  MOTION/RECOMMENDATION: RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL 97 
                   OF ORDINANCE 19-01 “AMENDING CHAPTER 8.16 NUISANCE  98 
                   ORDINANCE”        99 
Morris stated that the public hearing requirement has been met. The ordinance has been reviewed 100 
several times.  Morris stated that the intent is to make nuisance violations more measurable.       101 
Several typographical errors will be corrected before the ordinance is sent to Council for 102 
approval.  Commissioner Reynolds stated that Monroe has more important things to do than 103 
enforce 52 nuisance violations. He stated that the City should have a part time code enforcement 104 
officer to enforce all the laws. 105 
Monroe stated that the law keeps good people honest. He stated that there are some that drag out 106 
the process and the ordinance is needed to have “some teeth” to enforce. Morris stated that the 107 
courts like to have it specifically spelled out and easy to prosecute.  108 
 109 

Motion by Commissioner Henderson 110 
Seconded by Commissioner Reynolds 111 
To recommend approval of Ord.19-01 112 

“Amending Chapter 8.16 Nuisance Ordinance” 113 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 114 

                     115 
7. MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   116 

Commissioner Allen wanted to recognize Commissioner Reynolds for his years serving as 117 
Chairman. 118 
 119 

Motion by Commissioner Morgan 120 
Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 121 

To adjourn the meeting 122 
Approved unanimously (6-0) 123 

Time: 6:30 p.m. 124 
 125 
Chairman Larsen adjourned the meeting at 6:30 p.m. 126 
 127 
 128 
________________________________           ______________________________ 129 
Date Approved                                                   City Recorder 130 
 131 
 132 
 133 
 134 



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

      
 
 
 
 
Author:  Planning Dept. 
Subject:  Carver/Mollet In-fill Subdivision, Preliminary Subdivision & Site Plan 

approval, located at 175 West 4900 South. 
Date:  March 28, 2019, Thursday at 6:00pm, City Washington Terrace City Hall 
Type of Item: Action to approve Preliminary Subdivision & Site Plan for Carver subdivision. 
 
Summary: Review Preliminary Subdivision & site plan for Carver/Mollet Subdivision for 

Ryan & Mike Mollet located at located 175 West 4900 South   
   This property is part of the approved properties allowed for in-fill 

development. 
    
                 If approved, the Developer will need to provide the Mylar and construction 

drawing and include the development agreement prior to bringing back the 
completed documents and information to the Planning Commission for Final 
Approval. 

Description:  
This Parcel has been previously used as Single-Family Residential home by the Carver 

Family This parcel has been identified and considered as a property that qualifies for In-fill 
development within the City of Washington Terrace.  

In-fill housing allows for buildable sites on vacant lands that have been left as open space 
area and surrounded by different uses. With the adoption of the In-fill housing ordinance which 
allows the property Owners to build or develop their property.  

The In-fill ordinance provides for higher density and adjustments to the City standards for 
zoning, modifications to setbacks, and road widths. The Developer shall also continue to maintain 
a single family element to the exterior appearance of the structures by maintaining two car 
garages and compliance with approved architectural standards, which means no stucco on the 
front of the building and adding varied roof lines with dormers and etc.   

The In-fill development ordinance has become a key component of growth within the City of 
Washington Terrace.  
Benefits of In-fill: 

• Reduce unsightly nuisance lots 
• Smart growth 
• Improve appearance of an area 
• Contribute to the economy, (taxes – fees)  
• Diverse housing for Single Family- low moderate housing compliance 
• Reduce crime  
• Affordable housing  

 
Topic:   In-fill Subdivision  
 The applicant is proposing a Single Family townhome project consisting of 12 Single Family units. 
Each unit will be sold as Single Family units, the lot sizes and number of lots comply with the In-fill 
requirements to be considered as an In-fill subdivision.  
 The scheme and design of the buildings comply with architectural requirements of the Ordinance.  



 The parking requirement is for a two car garage and two allowable spaces in front of the two car 
garage. The developer has complied with the Ordinance. 

The submitted plans and renderings comply with the In-fill development procedures and will 
accomplish the desired outcome.  

• The Planning Commission should evaluate the In-fill proposed Site Plan & Subdivision for its 
practicality and potential Land Use benefit for the desired area and if the Site Plan that is 
submitted work.  

• The impact of newer homes being built in the area, can increase property values to surrounding 
homes. Does this provide added value to the area and improve the quality of life for the 
surrounding area? 

  
Analysis: 

 The objective is to provide landowners an opportunity to develop their ground. The intent is to also 
allow for development that will not distract from the area or City and will be a positive improvement to the 
City of Washington Terrace. 
 
Department Review:  
The Staff has reviewed the Site Plan and Carver/Mollet Subdivision development. The opinion at this time 
is to give a favorable recommendation for the Preliminary Site Plan and In-fill Subdivision approval. 

The benefit of the development for the following reason 
 

• This development will contribute to the area. 
• It complies with the allowable lots for the bonus for the surrounding area. 
• The minimum lot sizes conform to the In-fill Ordinance 
• Renderings for the buildings comply with the In-fill architectural description as outlined in the 

code. (Two car garages, parking, materials to be used on exterior and curb appeal to the front and 
roof lines of the buildings). 

• It meets the allowable parking spaces  
• The overall design of the development meets the Cities goal for In-fill development. 
• Has been given approval by Fire. 

 
Alternatives: 
A. Approve the Request:   The Planning Commission should by motion give their favorable 
recommendation for the Preliminary Site Plan and In-fill Subdivision approval.  
B. Deny the Request:   The Planning Commission can deny the request with direction. 
C. Continue the Item:   The Planning Commission may table the request to a later meeting; requesting 
additional information, or seek additional changes or clarification and or staff items have been completed.   



--,/1
. --S/\3

I

A
>
i

o
!D

o

o
E



&llilX-.{I|-\ru-arL tyxma U.L6I tq ! & b, &t-r}S,

-i--trrt'trl.l rIlriiflE7.ut1-rlir-iEt:r::t3af31.r-E1r

Elevations

ru See Sheat

Oct. '18

ffi"oo..@

E]

Ir,IH

ffi
rffi

>fi
:'t



r:\C\rs_-F.-\rer,t, rolrad s.xrla4 (cl E u &. 61_rc!nr

ili
ll r
ll 

r

ll Ill lril!l
I I {r
I ai

liil
iirl

-__..tt I

____Li___.1
It

r;"

ixl

F
qI.
,I
rF

,E

$

ffi

T'
EE.

itl

! WXWff ry" Lever Froor Pran
@Craig's Comer Tomhome pRUD * See Sheet '::ww!ffi &-'L..,N

ffi
II
I

-lP4
ii {
ii
il
lt
lr

iii



l:\Er&--.ar!nlBut.q. blrt2da 0'n.A & (4 ! ry tu. an-r+!E

*=tEiril*aiEE@E{E a,llt{iaili.E ffi

N
fi
h
L

I
h
t0

d\

$

ffi
N
a\)

I ffi-#* T: ryF"r Lever Froor Pran

EiPgX; craig's comeLf,oJtenlome PRUD * see sheet

SILVERPEAK@ &t E

,-. :.:;,::wffi, ffi"R..a@

ffi


	PC Staff-Report Preliminary Sub-site plan-Carver-Mollet - 175 W 4900 S- INFILL subdivision-March 28-2019.pdf
	Author:  Planning Dept.
	Subject:  Carver/Mollet In-fill Subdivision, Preliminary Subdivision & Site Plan approval, located at 175 West 4900 South.
	Date:  March 28, 2019, Thursday at 6:00pm, City Washington Terrace City Hall
	Type of Item: Action to approve Preliminary Subdivision & Site Plan for Carver subdivision.
	Summary: Review Preliminary Subdivision & site plan for Carver/Mollet Subdivision for Ryan & Mike Mollet located at located 175 West 4900 South
	This property is part of the approved properties allowed for in-fill development.
	If approved, the Developer will need to provide the Mylar and construction drawing and include the development agreement prior to bringing back the completed documents and information to the Planning Commission for Final Approval.
	Planning Commission
	Staff Report


